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Fig. 7 Christopher Saxton, Atlas of England and Wales, Kent (1575)
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Fig. 8 Philip Symonson, Map of Kent (1596)
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Fig. 9 J. Andrews, A. Dury and W. Herbert, A Topographical Map of the County of
Kent in Twenty Five Sheets (1769)
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Fig. 10 William Mudge, An Entirely New and Accurate Survey of the County
of Kent (1801)
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Fig. 11 Tithe map. Goudhurst Parish (1840). Centre for Kentish Studies ref.
IR30/17/153(1)
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Fig. 12 Estate map (1849)
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Fig. 13 Plan of Finchcocks Estate from Sales Particulars (1863)
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Fig. 14 Ordnance Survey 1st edn 25” map (1870)
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Fig. 15 Ordnance Survey 2nd edn 25" map (1895)

356
13-002

PP Ly

_:,._.__

>

1
'r

5

=5
i)

. g&f";::-""--- .
A

I

=

/ Gty @R . GIRdR l793

= P ok - AT

- -~ ¥ el . C

N A1) % e O SR o
oy \J Y-

o A A

&3

%,

(("'! 9
Cydera e
= E‘ :J"-u

o

e

=

=S AT .‘QS‘J

= ' »
a9

e v

AT

3:770

T
&
w
®:

I.062

R

wanen,, || 786
-364

AL T
T

4 Brick & Tile Works 6.4.204 £

1783
7-130

"‘,- ) .\“ . ‘_:;‘ ({S‘, {lé E:Eb EI._.J @, éé)’ ér’-} é.'%) {é‘) {;:’) &

=2 G2 Q. 2, m YENE D 7 27-014 =)
v - L e S b
2, 2 r_ '~ & A 3 L
-2 Roo k er y Wood ~» 5ol \ =2 B 4
'"1@ - ) 29 ol o = . l" oG P &
& Bn 2 s e B i &8 & AT I 20, 2% =
0 Ny = cvgﬁ <" VJ a el 5, -
2 (-n.l.'a:_Q-u b = E.\r ~ £,

1773
-I5X |




Kent Compendium of Historic Parks & Gardens — 2009 review of Tunbridge Wells Borough

Fig. 16 Ordnance Survey Revised edn 25" map (1938)
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Fig. 17 Finchcocks: the seat of Richard Springett, Esq print ¢.1830 in Katrina and Richard Burnett,
Finchcocks Past and Present (Goudhurst: Finchcocks Press, 2003), p. 11
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Fig. 18 Grylls Addison, The Rose Walk at Finchcocks c. 1897, reproduced in Burnett, p. 22
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Fig. 19 Photograph of house front late C19 in Burnett, p. 13

Finchcocks in the late

nineteenth cenlury
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Fig.20 Edward Hasted, ‘Parishes: Goudhurst (part), The History and
Topographical Survey of the County of Kent: Volume 7 (London, 1798), pp. 64-
73.

FINCHCOCKS is a feat in this parish, situated within the hundred of Marden, in that
angle of it which extends south-westward below Hope mill, and is likewise within that
manor. It was formerly of note for being the mansion of a family of the same
surname, who were possessed of it as early as the 40th year of Henry 111. They were
succeeded in it by the family of Horden, of Horden, who became proprietors of it by
purchase in the beginning of king Henry V1's reign, one of whom was Edward
Horden, esq. clerk of the green cloth to king Edward V1. queen Mary, and queen
Elizabeth, who had, for some considerable service to the crown, the augmentation of a
regal diadem, added to his paternal coat by queen Elizabeth. He left two daughters his
coheirs, Elizabeth, married to Mr. Paul Bathurst, of Bathurst-street, in Nordiam, and
Mary to Mr. Delves, of Fletchings, who had Horden for his share of the inheritance, as
the other had this of Finchcocks. He was descended from Laurence Bathurst, of
Canterbury, who held lands there and in Cranbrooke, whose son of the same name,
left three sons, of whom Edward, the eldest, was of Staplehurst, and was ancestor of
the Bathursts, of Franks, in this county, now extinct, () of the earls Bathurst, and
those of Clarenden-park, in Wiltshire, and Lydney, in Gloucestershire; Robert
Bathurst, the second, was of Horsemonden; and John, the third son, was ancestor of
the Bathursts, of Ockham, in Hampshire. Robert Bathurst, of Horsemonden above-
mentioned, by his first wife had John, from whom came the Bathursts, of Lechlade, in
Gloucestershire, and baronets; and Paul, who was of Nordiam, and afterwards
possessor of Finchcocks, from whose great-grandson William, who was a merchant in
London, descended the Bathursts, of Edmonton, in Middlesex. By his second wife he
had John, who was of Goudhurst, ancestor of the Bathursts, of Richmond, in
Yorkshire. In the descendants of Paul Bathurst before-mentioned, this seat continued
down to Thomas Bathurst, esq. who by his will devised this seat and estate to his
nephew Edward, only son of his younger brother William, of Wilmington, who
leaving his residence there on having this seat devised to him, removed hither, and
rebuilt this seat, at a great expence, in a most stately manner. He resided here till his
death in 1772, having been twice married, and leaving several children by each of his
wives. By his first wife Elizabeth, third daughter and coheir of Stephen Stringer, esq.
of Triggs, he had three sons, Edward, who left a daughter Dorothy, now unmarried,
and John and Thomas, both fellows of All Souls college, in Oxford, the latter of
whom is now rector of Welwyn, in Hertfordshire. Before his death he conveyed this
seat and estate by sale to his son by his second wife, Mr. Charles Bathurst, who on his
decease in 1767, 5. p. devised it by will to his brother, the Rev. Mr. Richard Bathurst,
now of Rochester, the present possessor of it. This branch of the family of Bathurst.
bore for their arms the same coat as those of Franks, in this county, and those of
Cirencester, Lydney, and Clarendon, viz. Sable, two bars, ermine, in chief three
crosses pattee, or, with a crescent for difference; but with a different crest, viz. Party
per fess, and pale, a demi wolf argent, and sable, holding a regal crown, or; which 1
take to be that borne by Edward Horden, whose heir Paul Bathurst, their ancestor,
married, and whose coat of arms they likewise quartered with their own.
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Fig. 21 Extract from 1863 Sales Particulars

LOT 1 contmvvnp,

THE DOMESTIC OFFICES comprise Butler's Pantry, Servants’ Hall, lsrge Kitchen, Seullery, with Water

laidl on.
In the Bassuest are unusually dry and spacious arched Wine, Alo and Beer Callars, with Cosl Duiry snd Lander,

In the COURT YARD is a Larder, Brow-house, Bake-houss nnd Shoe Room, and outside of this s anather YARD,
with Coal Bins and Ash House, Servauts’ Water Closet, Wood Shed and Dog Kennel,

TWO LAWNS WITH PLEASURE GROUNDS,

A LONG WALK from the West Front of the Mansion, partly shaded by Liuz Trees, leads to the

MOAT OR FiISH PONDS,

And to the GARDEN, which is Walled and well stocked with FRUIT TREES, Toel Houso snd Potting
Shed;

OUTER GARDEN, Forcing Pits, FILBERT W AXD PLANTATION; TWo ORCHARDS, sud
ROOKERY ;

LADYS PLOWERR GARDEYY,
Gazxw Hovse, Sumvmmery platod with Cuosce Sunvms, with GRAVELLED WALKS;

PARK,

Studded with ORNAMENTAL TIMDER and FOREST TREES of large Growth, in the most Thriving and
Henlthy Condition ; FISH POND, &e.

THE OUT-OFFICES ARE MOST COMPLETE,

Sereened from the Manslon by FULL GROwWN TIMBER, and comprise Three Coach Houses, Locse Boxes, and
Four-atall Stable, with lage Grannry and Stote Room ¥er, Outer Cart Bhed, with Carn Life
e

A CAPITAL RANGE OF SUBSTANTIAL BRICK BUILDINGS,

With Barwirr's Hovse, Pay Row, Dairy, Stabling for Twelvs Iorses with Cern Room, and Lean-to Tmplement Shed
in the Rear;

caf#4

Newly-built Pigyeries, with Boiling House, Pouliry Houses, and soparate Yard, and Pigeon Howe,

THE FARM BUILDINGS

Are all supplied, as well as the Mansion, with Water, carried for Hulf-a-Mile by Pipes, from o never-
failing Spring in Broadham’s Wood, adjoining the Gardens, and are adwirably arrnged for Rearing Stock
and other purposes, and comprise

THREE YARDS, enclosed hy Brick Walls, with a separate Patting Shed to each for
Bullochs, aml OUTER YARD with Sheds ;

K YARD, with Hay Bam and W,

aggon Lodge, and lacge Cool Cellar for Clidsry Anather Yard, with Lodges;
+ #soparate Yard for Calves, with Shed ; Another Yard, with Cow
i Kight Loose Boxes for Cart Horses; Stable for Three Horses, Home
Luan-to, aud Machine House,

and lacge spacious Barn with

TIMBER YARD, with Saw Pit, Corpenter’s and Wheslw tight's Shops, Smith's Shop and Two Sheds,

A BRICK-BULLT AND TILED OAST HOUSE,

Witk 81X KILNS, capable of drying Two Toxs or Hors per Dy, with lage Cooling Ruoom, Cart and Waggan

Shed, and Lodge for Sheep Gates,

Adjoining the Garden are Ganoesen's and Kexren's Coraces, Yard with Dog Kennel, and FISH POND.




Kent Compendium of Historic Parks & Gardens — 2009 review of
Tunbridge Wells Borough

Fig. 22 A. Oswald, Country Houses of Kent (London: Country Life, 1933)

FINCHCOCKS (about a mile S.W. of Goudhurst). An interesting brick house of the
time of George I, reproducing on more ample lines the kind of elevation found in pro-
vincial town houses of the period. It is unusually high for its size and the feeling of
height is increased by a number of devices—the elongation of the ground floor windows,
the vertical effect of the pilasters, the piling of a heavy parapet on the attic storey and the
addition of tall chimneys to break the sky-line. The wings also heighten by contrast the
effect of the main block by repeating its features on a smaller scale, and give the front a
subtle and quite deceptive appearance of depth by the curving of their connecting sides.
In the design of this fagade with its straining after a dramatic effect one can sense the
influence of Vanbrugh and his school. Itis unlikely, however, to be the work of a London
architect, since many of its features are local mannerisms, recurring at West Farleigh Hall
and Matfield. The big triangular pediment, a quite illogical feature in such a design, is
filled with a florid representation of the arms of the builder of the house and trophies
celebrating his military career. Edward Bathurst came into the property in 1718. From
the original Finchcocks family it had passed to the Hordens, and Edward Bathurst's
grandfather had married the younger of the two Horden heiresses. Presumably he em-
barked on the work of rebuilding soon after he had inherited the property, since the
date 1725 appears on the rain-water heads. The house has an unusual thickness and the
entrance hall extends for its full depth (50 ft.). Going up out of one corner is a good
Georgian staircase, and over the large fireplace on the right is an interesting panel
picture by James Maubart* showing Edward Bathurst and his family. The niche over
the entrance contains a statue of Queen Anne; it was not, however, made for this posi-

* tion, having come from the Guildhall in London at the time when a new statue was
made towards the end of last century. Both inside and out Finchcocks is the embodi-
ment of solid comfort and dignified respectability, the two qualities which, rightly or
wrongly, we inevitably associate with buildings of this date.

_* There is a contemporary group, also by Maubart, of the family of the first Lord Bathurst at
Cirencester Park (Glos.). The same negro servant appears in each. .




Kent Compendium of Historic Parks & Gardens — 2009 review of Tunbridge
Wells Borough

Fig. 23 John Newman, Pevsner architectural guides: The Buildings of

England. West Kent and the Weald (London: Yale University Press, 1969),

230 FINCHCOCKS
13} m. sw of Goudhurst

Edward Bathurst came into his inheritance in 1718. The house
that was built for him, dated 1725 on the rainwater-heads, is
the most notable Baroque house in the county; which is a way
-of saying that no Baroque housc of the first rank can be found
in Kent. For Finchcocks represents the moment when the
country-house style of Vanbrugh and Archer was slipping
down the scale into the hands of local master builders. One
admires the bold conception almost interpreted with success,
the panache with which a relatively small house is made to
look grand, but one does not find intellectual subtlety or real
drama. The house is executed in red brick, with brighter red
dressings and darker red chimneys and parapets, a back-
ground enlivened with telling touches of white.

The entrance front faces E, a three-storeysd main block,
seven windows wide, the third storey above a cornice, with
two-storeyed wings which descend yet lower at the sides to
curved pieces of wall, The crescendo towards the centre is the
essence of the composition, but one which is hard to appre-
ciate when, following the present drive, one approaches the
facade obliquely. The centre block has the three middle bays
differentiated from the rest. They break forward a little, with
round-headed, not segmental windows, n peculinrly illogical
pediment resting on the cornice and filled with martial
trophies, and, in the wall above it, two round windows, The
main chimneystacks continue the verticals, Plain, broad
Tuscan doorcase on half-columns. Above it, a rubbed brick
niche, intended originally to be decoration enough in itself,
but now filled with a mutilated statue of Queen Anne from the
Royal Exchange. The angles of the main block have stubby
Tuscan pilasters, with pieces of white triglyph entablature

. upon them, continued above the cornice as pilaster strips and
so to the deeply modelled brick parapet. The pilasters are the

" linking motif with the wings, standing forward of the main
block and attached by convex quadrants of wall. The pilasters,
entablature-chunks, and continuous cornice repeat in the
wings, but lower, so that the cornice reaches only to the capi-
tals of the main block pilasters, and the wing parapets are as
high as the main block entablature. This is ingenious, but
leaves the levels of the brick string-courses lower down unre-
solved. From N, W, and s the main block is revealed as to all
intents the whole house, It is three bays deep and has end
chimneystacks arched in a rather timid version of a Van-
brughian motif. The w front, of chequered brick, is basically
the same as the E, minus the pediment and pilasters, and with
a more emphatic parapet, which increases the cliff-like effect.
"T'he doorcase is a slightly simplified version of that on the £
front, reflecting the fact that the hall runs the depth of the
house. In the hall an exceedingly large fireplace (a c16 one
incorporated in the new house?), with as an overmantel a
large painting of Bathurst and his family by Fames Maubart.
The staircase, with three turned balusters per tread, runs up
from the Nw corner of the hall and leads to a spacious upper
landing with a fireplace.

c18 STABLES, NW of the house, of red brick, with lunette
windows in the upper storey, the central one incorporated in
the carriage-entrance,
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Fig. 24 Photographs of Finchcocks December 2008

02, 12.2008

Above left: The south fagcade of the mansion
Below left: View along the double mixed border

Right: The Wellesley and Wills summerhouse

" 02.72.2008






